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HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors' report of the
Charitable Company for the 2020/21 ended 31 August 2021. The annual report serves the purpose of both a
Trustees' report, and a Directors’ report under company law.

The Trust operates a primary academy for puplls aged 3 to 11 in the Palgnton area. It has a pupll capacity of
450 and had a roll of 433 in the school census on January 2021,

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

The Academy Trust (was incorporated on 02 March 2011 and opened as an Academy on 01 April 2011) is a
company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The Charitable Company’s Memorandum and Articles
of Association are the primary govemning documents of the Academy Trust.

The Trustess act as Trustees for the charitable activities of Hayas School and are also the directors of the
Charitable Company for the purposes of company law. The Charitable Company is known as Hayes School.

Trustees’ Liabllity
Each member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Company In the event
of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such

amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they cease to be
a member.

Trustees® Indemnities

Trustees benefit from Indemnity insurance purchased at the Academy Trust’s expense to cover the liabllity of
the Trustees which by virtue of any rule of law would otherwise attach to them in respect of any negligence,
default or breach of trust or breach of duty of which they may be guilty in relation to the Academy Trust,
provided that any such insurance shall not extend to any claim arising from any act or omission which the
Trustees knew to be a breach of trust or breach of duty or which was committed by the Trustees In reckless
disregard to whether it was a breach of trust or breach of duty or not and provided also that any such
Insurance shall not extend to the costs of any unsuccessful defence to a criminal prosecution brought against
the Trustees in their capacity as Directors of the Academy Trust. This indemnity Is unlimited.

Principal Activities

The principal activity Is to advance for the public benefit by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing
and developing a primary school offering a broad and balanced curriculum. The principal activity of the
Academy is to provide free education for puplls of different abllities between the ages of 3 and 11.

TRUSTEES

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

On 01 April 2011 the Trustees appointed all those Trustees that served the predecessor schoo! to be
Trustees of the newly formed Academy. These Trustees were appointed for a term of office that would end
when their original term at the predecessor school would have ended, thus ensuring a staggered re-election
or replacement process.

The Academy’s Board of Trustees comprises the Headteacher, a minimum of 2 Parent Trustess, up to 2 Staff

Trustees (providing that the total number of Trustees, including the Headteacher, who are employees of the
Academy Trust, does not exceed one third of the total number of Trustees) and up to-6 other Trustees.
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HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The Academy Trust shall have the following Trustees as set out in its Asticles of Association and funding
agreement:

up to 6 Govemors, appointed by parents;

up to 2 staff govermnors;

A minimum of 2 Parent Govemors who are elected;

the Headteacher who Is treated for all purposes as being an ex officio Govemor;

any further governor is appointed under the terms of the articles of assaclation (Articles 62, 63 & 68).

Trustees are appointed for a four-year period, except that this time limit does not apply to the Headteacher.
Subject to remaining eligible to be a Trustes, any Trustee can be re-appointed or re-elected.

When appointing new Trustees, the Board will give consideration to the skills and experience mix of existing
Trustees In order to ensure that the Board has the necessary skills to contribute fully to the Academy’s
development.

Policles and Procedures adopted for the Induction and Tralning for Trustees
The clerk retains recruitment, induction and Training packs for Trustees and maintains the skills register for

the Board. This is updated at least annually and on induction for any new Trustees.

The training and Induction provided for new Trustees will depend upon their existing experience but would
always include a tour of the Academy and a chance to meet staff and puplls (except for extraordinary
clrcumstances where physical attendance at school is minimised such as during the Covid 19 pandemic). All
Trustees are provided with coples of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other
documents that they will need to undertake their role as Trustees. As there are normally only two or thres
new Trustees a year, induction tends to be done informally and is tailored specifically to the individual.

The school amranges training for Govemnors through Torbay Local Authority and Babcock Education Services.

The clerk sends out details of available training at least monthly to all Trustees, then arranges training and
keeps a record of training attended.
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HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Organisational Structure
Hayes Governing Body Organogram

Members:

Alex Howarth (Parent)
Nigel williams
Jeff Hacon

Trustees - Full Governing 8ody:
Hex Howarth (Chair) SEN (Parent)
Emma. Bamber (Staff)
fan Spencer (Parent)

Sarah Gias (Vice Chair) Safeguarding

lark Hanbury (Headteacher)
Helen HR. Attendance (Parent)
Helene “Warren(Parent)

Taaching, Laarning & Standards Committee:
Alex Howarth (Chair) (Parent)
Sarah GRes (Vfce Chair)
Emma Bamber (Staff)
Mark Hanbury (Headteachor)
Helen Hil (Parent)

‘Finance and Buildings Committoa:
fan Spencer (Chair) (Parent)
Helen HA (Vice Chair)
Emma Bamber (not for audit)
‘Hetene - Warren

| |

Data Committee:
Emma Bamber (Chair)

Pay Committee:
Alex Howarth
ian Spencer
Sarah Giles

Sarah Gies
Mark Hanbury (Headteacher)
Aex Howarth (Pareat)

COMPANY SECRETARY: ALLISON GRANT 08/01/18 -
The Head Teacher is the Accounting Officer.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Trustees consider the Board of Trustees and the senior leadership team comprise the key management

personnel of the Academy in charge of directing and controlling, running and operating the Trust on a day to

day basis. All Trustees give their time freely and no Trustee received remuneration in the year.
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HAYES SCHOOL
{A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Senior Management pay and remuneration is decided by the Pay Committee which msets yearly, any
Increase In pay is based on performance of the individual and the contribution they make towards the
academy,

Details of Trustees’ expenses and related party transactions are disclosed in the notes to the accounts.

Risk management

The Trustees have assessed the risks to the school due to the Covid 19 pandemic. They have overseen,
reviewed and approved safeguarding risk assessments in October 2020, November 2020, January 2021,
March 2021, April 2021, May 2021 and July 2021. The schoo! staff members and recognised trade unions
have also baen consulted on risk assessments.

The Trustees Instructed Griffin Accountancy Services to camy out Responsible Officer checks for 2020/21 and
the audits were carried out in December 2020, March 2021 and June 2021.

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Academy is exposed, in particular those relating to
the specific teaching, provision of facilities and other operational areas, and its finances.

The Trustees have implemented a system to assess risks that the Academy faces, especially in the
operational areas (e.g. In relation to teaching, health & safety and trips) and In relation to the control of
finance. They have introduced systems, Including operational procedures (e.g. vetting of new staff and
visitors, supervision of Academy grounds) and internal financial controls in arder to minimise risk. Where
significant financial risk still remains they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover.

The Strategic Risk Register Is a standing item at every Full Goveming Body meeting.
Trade Union Facility time

There were no relevant union officials for the year/period ended 31 August 2021.

Connected Organisations, including Related Party Relationships

There are no related parties which either control or significantly influence the decisions and operations of
Hayes School.

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objects and Alms

The principal object and activity of the Academy is to advance for the public benefit education in the United
Kingdom, in particular by establishing, maintaining, cartrying on, managing and developing a school, offering a
broad range of curriculum for puplls of different abilities.

The aims of the Academy during the year/pericd ended 31 August 2021 are summarised below:

to continue to raise the standard of educational attainment and achievement of all pupils.

to provide a broad and balanced curriculum, Including extracurricular activities.

to develop pupils as more effective leamers.

to develop the Academy site so that it enables students to achieve their full potential.

to ensure that every child enjoys the same high quality education in terms of resourcing, tuition and

care. . . , ,

¢ to improve the effectiveness of the Academy by keeping the curriculum and organisational structure
under continual review.

e to provide value for money for the funds expended.
« to develop greater coherence, clarity and effectiveness in schoo! systems,
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HAYES SCHOOL
{A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

« to comply with all appropriate statutory and curriculum requirements.

¢ to develop the Academy’s capacity to manage change, and

« to conduct the Academy’s business in accordance with the highest standards of integrity, probity and
openness.

At Hayes Schoo!l we aim to get the best for, and from, each child. We intend to enable each child to realise
his or her full academic, creative and physical potential and to develop positive social and moral values.

Our Academy is a community in which chlidren, staff and parents should be part of a happy and caring
enviranment.

Objectives, Strategles and Activities

Key activities and targets were identified in the School Improvement Plan and were influenced by the
significant challanges and opportunities arising from national changes in education policy and funding. The
activities Included the following:

Quality of Education

INTENT:
e Further strengthen our curriculum to ensure breadth and ambition, with vocabulary at its heart.
o Ensure that our curriculum (blended) builds knowledge and skills that are coherently planned and
sequenced and teachers fill gaps due to lockdown.
IMPLEMENTATION:

« Develop our use of feedback to accelerate progress through the use of the Empowering Leamers
through Feedback ‘ELF’ framework.
¢ Ensure that leaming is challenging for all pupils.
¢ Further strengthen our reading provision, with a specific focus on:
o Accelerated progress in phonics through RWI and decodable books
o Phonics Intervention for all pupils who require it
o Continued focus on the teaching of reading skills, specifically developing vocabulary

IMPACT:
e The culture of Hayes remains amblitious for all, with ‘no excuses', equalizing opportunities post lockdown.

Behaviour and Al des
Initial and ongoing focus due to significant changes to school life post lockdown.

e To secure attitudes to education that are positive and reflect a growth mindset.

¢ Encourage puplis to make a positive and tangible contribution to school life and the wider community
(where possible with current restrictions), Including supporting the wellbeing of one another.

« Establish a school-wide culture where children embrace challenge.

Personal Development
Initlal and ongoing focus due to significant changes to school life post lockdown.
¢ Ensure that pupils reflect upon SMSC regulariy.

o Provide opportunities to keep pupils physically and mentally healthy.
o _ To appreciate, respect, value and nurture differences in our school, community and world.
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HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Leadership and Management

¢ To build on and improve each teacher’s practice and subject knowledge.
To further develop the Impact of middie leaders.
Implement realistic and constructive ways to manage workload and wellbeing, whilst malintalning high
standards for pupils.

+ Ensure Teaching Assistants are equipped with the skills to provide high quality education.

Early Years Education

INTENT:
+ Further sharpen the focus on vocabulary and phonics across EYFS.
« Strengthen the systematic approach to early reading and synthetic phonics.
+ Ensure we have academic ambition for all pupils.

IMPLEMENTATION:
+ Puplls in Reception to practice reading from decodable books.
+ Read stories to children with the purpose of developing their vocabulary.

IMPACT:
+ Pupils use phonics to read accurately with increasing speed and fluency.

Public Benefit

The Trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty in In Section 17(5) of the Charities Act 2011 to
have due regard to the Charity Commissioner’s general guidance on public benefit in exercising their powers
or duties. They have referred to this guidance when reviewing the Academy’s aims and objectives and in
planning its future activities.

The Academy aims to advance for the public benefit, education in St Michael's and the surrounding area. In
particular, but without prejudice to the generality of the forgoing by estimating, maintaining, managing and
development schools, offering a broad curriculum with a strong emphasis on, but in no way limited to the
specialism of performing arts.

STRATEGIC REPORT

Achievements and Performance
The Academy is in its tenth year of operation and has maintained the forecast number of students. The total
number of students in the January school census was 433 including Nursery.

Key Stage 2 SATS Tests remainad unchanged for 2020/21 as these tests were cancelled nationally due
to the Coronavirus pandemlec:

o KS2 achieving expected in combined Reading, Writing & Maths was 81% compared to a 64.8%
national average. The three year trend was an improvement of 41.3%.

o KS2 achieving expected in Reading was 87.9%, compared to a national average of 73.1%. The three
year trend was an improvement of 37.9%.

e KS2 achleving the higher standard in Maths was 41.4%, compare to a national average of 26.6%.
This was a three year improvement of 36.2%.

o KS2 achieving expected standard in Maths was 93.1%, compared to the national average of 78.6%.
This was a three-year improvement of 34.5%.

e KS2 Overall Progress Score for maths was 4.11 compared to the national score of 0.03. This was a
three year score of 7.75.
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HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The Academy has managed to malntain class sizes, generally at PAN, with each year group having its 2
classes. All classes have a teaching assistant, which Is a valuable addition to the classroom.

Voluntesrs have been helping In the Academy this year. Thelr commitment to the children and Academy Is
inspirational. They have helped with reading, writing, maths, drama and trips out of school.

To ensure that standards are continually assessed, the Academy operates a programmse of lesson
observations, which are undertaken by the Phase Leads and the Senior Leadership Team.

The Academy was Inspected by OFSTED in October 2019 and was judged to be good in all areas.

“Leaders have made sure that the school has improved significantly since the previous inspection. in
particular, they have ensured that stronger teaching has led to rapidly rising standards in reading, writing and
mathematics across the school. Leaders have effectively addressed the areas for improvement noted in that
inspection®, Ofsted 2019

What does the school need to do to improve?

& Leaders have provided good-quallty training for staff that has led to significantly improving outcomes in
reading, writing and mathematics since the previous inspection. They now need to focus on improving further
the subject knowledge of teachers in order to secure puplls’ progress in other subjects.

& Leaders have constructed a curriculum that identifles the knowledge and skills that puplis need to learn in
all foundation subjects. They need to now consider how to enable pupils to build successfully upon their prior
{eaming In subjects and clearly identlfy the skills and knowledge that pupils should remember over time.

The points outlined above are school improvement priorities for 2020/21 and beyond. These are linked to
appraisal targets for teachers across the school. These targets are regularly reviewed and feedback to
governors throughout the year. The school improvement partner reviews the schools performance towards
these priorities and reports back to the Headteacher and Govemors.

Key Parformance Indicators
As funding Is based on pupil numbers this is also a key performance indicator. Pupil numbers for 2021 were

433, which is slightly lower than the previous year. It is anticipated that the school population will increase in
future years.

Ancther key financial performance indicator is staffing costs as a percentage of total income. For 2020/21 this
was 89%, compared to 82% in 2019/20. For 2021/22 we are predicting this will remaln similar.

2018/2019 | 2019/2020 | 2020/21
Pupll to teacher ratio 29.3:1 25.7:1 27.1:1
Teaching Assistants to Teacher Ratio 1.86:1 1.19:1 1.28:1
Total income per pupll £4,828 £4,996 £5,288
Total GAG per pupll £3,703 £3,663 £3,776
GAG income % of total income : 76.7% 73.3% 71.4%
Staff costs per pupll £4,054 £4,608 £4,602
Staff costs as a % of GAG income 109.5% 125% 125%
Staff costs as a % of total income 89.8% 82% 89%
Total leaming resources costs per pupll £263 £444
Property repair costs per pupll £27 £10.12 |
Net assets at the year end £4,455,391 | £4,164,367| £3.754,807
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HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The pupll to teacher ratio is In Iine with the previous year. There have been no significant changes In teaching
staff. .

Attendance figures have decreased this year but, as we were dealing with the national coronavirus pandemic,
so this is to be expected.

Teaching Assistant to Teacher Level was also lower than the previous year due to a slight reduction in the
number of Teaching Assistants across the school, through natural staff changes.

Going Concern ,
After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy

Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason
it continues to adopt the going concem basis In preparing the financlal statements. Further detalls regarding
the adoption of the going concern basls can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policles.

Financlal Review

Most of the Academy’s income is obtained from the DfE via the ESFA In the form of recurrent grants, the use
of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the DfE during the year ended 31
August 2021 and the assoclated expenditure are shown as Restricted Funds in the Statement of Financlal
Activities.

During the year ended 31 August 2021, total expenditure of £2,174,870 (excluding actuarial pension
adjustments and depreciation) was covered by recurrent grant funding from the DfE, together with other
incoming resources of £2,289,682,

The Academy has taken on the deficit in the Local Government Pension Scheme In respect of its non-
teaching staff transferred on conversion, the valuation at 31/08/21 was £2,064,000.

The level of unrestricted free reserves held by the Academy at 31 August 2021 was £228,245. Deslignated
funds were £40,100. GAG and other restricted funds carried forward were £176,327. v

Key financial policies adopted or reviewed during the year include the Finance Policy which lays out the
framework for financial management, Including financial responsibilities of the Board, Head Teacher,
managers, budget holders and other staff, as well as delegated authority for spending.

Trustees have adopted a Responsible Officer/intemnal audit policy and appointed Griffin Accounting Services
to undertake a programme of internal checks on the financial controls. The Trustees have received 3 reports
from the Responsible Officer/internal audit, which contained no matters of significance.

There Is a development plan in place for repair, improvement and development to the school over the next §
years. These include:

Project Estimated Cost
Development of 2 year old provision £37,000
| Ladies Toilet Refurbishment ' £3,100

This will be reviewed annually to ensure that the nreeds of the school are being met and to see if additional

worlk/projects need to be allowed for.

Resgerves Policy

The Trustees review the reserve fevels of the Academy annually. This review encompasses the nature of

income and expenditure streams, the need to match Income with commitments and the nature of reserves. -
The Trustees take Into consideration the future plans of the Academy, the uncertainty over future income

streams and other key risks Identified during the risk review. The Trustees have reviewed the Academy’s

future plans and have set designated reserves of £40,100 as:
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HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Project Estimated Cost
Development of 2 year old provision £37,000
| Ladles Tollet Refurbishment £3,100
Investment Policy

Due to the nature of funding, the Academy may at times hold cash balances surplus to its short term
requirements. The Trustees have authorised the opening of additional short term bank investment accounts
to take advantage of higher interest rates. No other form of Investment Is authorised.

Principal Risks and Uncertaintles
The principal tisks and uncertainties facing the Academy are as foflows:

Financlal:

The Academy has considerable reliance on continued Govemnment funding through the ESFA. In the last
year, 97% of the Academy’s incoming resources was ultimately Government funded and whiist this level is
expected to continue, there is no assurance that Govemment policy or practice will remain the same or that
public funding will continue at the same levels or on the same terms.

Fallures In governance and/or management - the risk in this area arises from potentlal failure to effectively
manage the Academy’s finances, intemal controls, compliance with regulations and legislation, statutory
retums, etc. The Trustees continue to review and ensure that appropriate meastres are in place to mitigate
these risks. The Covid 19 pandemic has meant Govemnors have been heavily involved in developing and
approving the procedures for the school to follow to ensure staff, puplils, parents and the local community are
as safe as possible. If these procedures are not followed corractly this could lead to a higher incidence of
cases and potentially more absence for both staff and pupils. Reputational damage could cause numbers to
decrease In future.

Fraud and mismanagement of funds - The Academy has appointed a Responsible Officer/internal audit to
carry out checks on financlal systems and records as required by the Academy Financial Handbook. All
finance staff receive training to keep them up to date with financlal practice requirements and develop their
skills in this area. Other financlal risks include Increased staffing costs and the risk of the after schoo! ciub,
breakfast club and catering service not breaking even.

Outcomes for Pupils:

Covid 19 pandemic management — the Governors and schaol staff are ensuring the strict requirements of the
reopening risk assessment are adhered to, to ensure staff and puplls are kept as safe as possible. This will
enable us to reduce staff and pupll absence and ensure children receive the best education and support
possible which will in tum enhance their future outcomes.

Safeguarding and Child Protection:

The Trustees continue to ensure that the highest standards are maintained in the areas of selection and
monitoring of staff, the operation of child protection policles and procedures, heaith and safety and discipline.
Overall performance and outcomes for disadvantaged pupils are closely monitored at least termly.

Estates and Facllitles

The risks due to the Covid 19 pandemic are being mitigated through stricter health and safety procedures and
enhanced cleaning procedures. The risks are mitigated through the provision of sufficlent and correct
personal protective equipment and cleaning equipment. There are a number of risks regarding faiture of ICT
systems, building management systems and kitchen facilites. These are mitigated through maintenance
agreements, regular checks and contingency plans.

Governance:

The Covid 19 pandemic has meant we have been unable to hold physical meetings. All mestings have been
held by zoom. There is a risk that Governors may not be able to attend mestings, could feel they are not able
to carry out their duties or feel they are not being properly supported. This has not been the case and

Page 11



HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

meetings have worked well online using Zoom and Governors have reported they are happy with both how

the pandemic is being managed by the schoof and how governors are being invoived in decision-making.

There is a risk of losing experienced Govermnors and ensuring current Govemors have the right skills and

:oxpeliignce. This is mitigated through regularly updating a skills matrix and provision of training and support
r all Governors.

Human Resources:

Reputational — The Covid 19 pandemic has led to the school introducing strict risk assessments to ensure the
staff and pupils are as safe as possible, If either staff or pupil groups do not adhere to the agreed measures,
there could be unnecessary cases in school which could lead to staff or pupll absence. Significant staffing
absence could resuilt in an inabllity to keep the school! fully open.

Reputational - the continuing success of the Academy is dependent on continuing to attract applicants in
sufficlent numbers by maintaining the highest educational standards. To mitigate this risk Trustees, ensure
that student success and achlevement are closely monitored and reviewed.

Staffing - the success of the Academy s rellant on the quality of its staff and so the Trustees monitor and
review policles and proceduras to ensure continued development and training of staff as well as ensuring
there is clear succession planning.

Legatl:
There are risks in adoption of Employment Law and health and Safety risks. These are mitigated through
purchase of professional services and regular audits to ensure compliance.

The Academy has continued to strengthen its risk management process throughout the year by improving the
process and ensuring staff awareness. A risk register is maintained and reviewed and updated on a regular
basis. This is now provided to each Full Goveming Body meeting.

Due to the Covid 19 pandemic, a more thorough, detailed risk assessment was developed and approved by
Govemnors, Staff and unions were also consulted on this. This detailed all of the measures put in place to
minimise the risks to staff, puplls, parents and local community.

FUNDRAISING
The Academy does not use any external fundraisers. All fundraising undertaken during the year was
monitored by the Trustees. :

PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS

The Academy will continue to strive to provide outstanding education and to improve the levels of
performance of its puplils at all levels. The Academy will continue to aim to attract high quality teachers and
support staff in order to dellver its objectives.

Woe plan to maintain small class sizes with a teaching assistant in each class which will reflect in- academic
outcomes being improved.

FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN TRUSTEE ON BEHALF OF OTHERS
The Academy and Its Trustees do not act as the Custodian Trustees of any other Charity.
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HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

AUDITORS
In so far as the Trustees are aware:
« there Is no relevant audit information of which the Charitable Company’s auditor Is unaware; and
o the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The auditors, Bishop Fleming, are willing to continue in office and a resolution to appoint them will be
propased at the annual general meeting.

Approved by order of the Board of Trustees on........c.c........... 8nd signed on its behalf by:

Mr A Howarth
Chair of Trustees
Date:
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HAYES SCHOOL
{A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As Trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Hayes Schoo! has an effective
and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. Howaver, such a system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of fallure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Headteacher, as Accounting Officer,
for ensuring financlal controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financlal
management and In accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between Hayes School and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for
reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns In Internal control.

GOVERNANCE

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the
Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met three times during the year.
Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Govemnors' Attendance at Meetings
FGB = Full Governing Body

TLS = Teaching, Leaming & Standards Committee
FB = Finance and Bulldings Committee

DC = Data Committee

PC = Pay Committee

8
g
o 3 K] B [

)| 8| = o 2] 3 3

Position g % 3 § 2 § g .g % S E
[+
Trustee / s3] 9| q g Bl | &| 2| % g
Director Name el | F| el el @] B8] 8] &§| & 8
Mark Hanbury Headteacher 3 3 3 3 3 3 1 1 0 o n
Alex Howarth SEN / Parent 3 3 3 3 3 2 1 1 1 1 10
Sarah Glles Safeguarding 3 3 3 3 3 2 1 1 1 1 10
Helene Warren Govemor . 3 2 3 0 3 2 1 0 0 0 4
Attendance /

Helen Hill Parent 3 2 3 2 3 2 1 1 V] 0 7
Emma Bamber Staff 3 3 3 3 3 3 1 1 0 0} 10
lan Spencer Parent 3 3 3 3 3 3 1 1 1 1 10

The membership of the Governing Body has not changed during the year. All meetings have been held
remotely, via Zoom. The Board and its committess have covered all planned agenda items and remote
working has not significantly impacted on their work. The lack of national data available due to there being no
national tests has meant more reliance on qualitative data and teacher assessments during the year.

Governance Review

The Governors review and update thelr skills matrix at every full goveming body meeting. The extemal
review of governance planned this year has been postponed to 2021/22 due to the pandemic.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The Members mest at least once a year at their annual general mesting. They subscribe to and can amend
the articles of association, may appoint new members and trustees, may issue direction to trustees via special
resolution, appolnt auditors, recelve accounts and have the power to change the name of or wind up the
academy trust.

The Board of Trustees/Goveming Bady normally meets once each term. The Board establishes an overall
framework for the govemance of the Academy and determines membership, terms of reference and
procedures of Committees and other groups. It receives reports including policies from its Committees for
ratification. It monitors the activities of the Committees through the minutes of their meetings. The Board may
from time to time establish Working Groups to perform spscific tasks over a limited timescale.

There are two standing committees which both have a sub-commitiee, as follows;

e Finance and Buildings Committee - this mests at least three times a year and Is responsible for
' monitoring, evaluating and reviewing policy and performance In relation to financial management,
compliance with reporting and regulatory requirements and reporting. The committee recelves reports
from the Responsible Officerfintemal audit and drafts the annual budget including setting staffing
levels. [t also incorporates the role of an audit committee. This Committee fulfils audit responsibilities
and ensures the School meets its legal auditing requirements. This committee receives and responds

to reports from internal and external auditors,

¢ The annual Pay Committee Is a sub-committee of the Finance and Buildings Committee. This meets
once a year to review pay awards and consists of volunteer members of the Goveming Body.

e Teaching, Leaming and Standards Committee - this meets once a term to monitor, evaluate and
review Academy policy, practice and performance in relation to curriculum planning, communications,
target setting and assessment, examinations and all pastoral Issues.

¢ The Data Committee is a sub-committee of the Teaching, Leaming and Standards Committee which
meets termly to assist the decislon making of the goveming body, by enabling mare detafled
conslderation of academy data collection, planning, monitoring and review.

The following declslons are reserved to the Board of Trustees; to conslder any proposats for changes to the
status or constitution of the Academy and its committee structure, to appoint or remove the Chairman and/or
Vice Chainman, to appoint the Headteacher and Clerk to the Trustees, to approve the Annual Development
Plan and budget.

The Trustees are responsible for setting general policy, adopting an annual plan and budget, approving the
statutory accounts, monitoring the Academy by the use of budgets and other data, and making major
declsions about the direction of the Academy, capital expenditure and staff appointments.

The Academy has a leadership structure, which consists of the Trustees, The Senior Leadership Team and
Team Leaders. The aim of the leadership structure Is to devolve responsibllity and encourage involvement in
declsion making at all levels.

REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY

Year ended 31 August 2021 . - :
As accounting officer, the Headlteacher Is responsible and accountable for ensuring that the academy trust
delivers good value In the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money
refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trusteas where value for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the Academy Trust has
delivered improved value for money during the year by:
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Improving Educational Results

» We have a broad and balanced curriculum designed to ensure that all pupils are enthused,
challenged and make good or better progress throughout school.

¢ We provide outstanding music provision to all children, where all puplis have inclusive music lessons,
and at KS 2 perform regulary as part of a thirty strong ensemble.

* Wae have gocd tracking systems to record all aspects of student progress through school to ensure
that support is targeted to achieve Value for Money.

e We monltor the needs of all puplls, and ensure the support they receive is bespoke to overcoming
challenges.

e The effectiveness of our strategles can be seen in the teacher assessments and qualitative
assessments of children this year, as well as feedback from our most recent School improvement
Partner visit, our SIP Impact review of 2020/21 and our Pupll Premium Impact strategy 2020/21.

Financial performance

+ The School Business Manager has been influential in driving down costs through thoroughly tracking
and monitoring contracts and costs. This has led to a number of contracts being renegotiated, scaled
down, cancelled or replaced during 2020/21. .

o All SLAs are reviewed annually to ensure that they are delivering good value for money and are fit for
purpase for the needs of the school.

o Financial management, govemance and oversight Is strong, with the use of several professional
bodies to advise and provide support and monitor.

e Careful budgeting ensures Value for Money is achieved In all aspects of the school.

¢ Spending proposals are budgeted and presented to senior leaders/Governors who then challenge
appropriately.

e We regularly review staffing to ensure that staff is deployed efficiently and appropriately, with targeted
support where necessary.
We continue to generate Income from catering, extended day provislon and our solar PV array.

o The school has a development plan in place to ensure that reserves are spent appropriately and
sensibility, identifying where improvement is needed or where existing needs can be met.

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of Internal control Is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk
of failure to achieve policles, alms and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absclute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of intemal control is based on an ongoing process designed to
identify and prioritise the risks the achlevement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate
the likelihood of those risks being reallsed and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them
efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Hayes School for
the period from 1 Septembar 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
financial statements.

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK : . .
The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the

operating, financial and compliance controls that have been Implemented to mitigate those risks. The
Trustees have implemented a number of systems to assess and minimise those risks, including intemal
controls described elsewhere. Where significant financial risk still remains they have ensured they have
adequate insurance cover. The Trustees receive the strategic risk register at every Full Governing Body
meeting.

The Board of Trustees is of the view that there Is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the Academy Trust’s significant risks that have been in place for the period from 1 September 2020
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to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process
is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

The Trustees examine the financial health formally every term, reviewing performance against budgets and
overall expenditure by means -of regular ‘update reports at all full Trustees' and Finance and Buildings
Committee mestings. The Trustees also regularly review cash flow forecasts and ensure sufficient funds are
held to cover all known and anticipated commitments.

At the year end, the Academy had no significant liabilities arising from trade creditors or debtors where there
would be a significant effect on liquidity.

THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountabllity. In particular it includes:

¢ Monthly monitoring reports to Govemning Bedy
¢ Regular review of financial policy and procedures
o Govemors approving plans In response to audit findings

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific intemnal audit function and has decided:
« To appaint Griffin Accounting Services as internal auditor -

The internal auditor’s role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Academy Trust's financlal systems.

Griffin Accountancy Services carried out Responsible Officer checks for 2020/21 in December 2020, March
2021 and June 2021 to fulfil internal scrutiny obligations. All visits were conducted remotely due to the
restrictions caused by Coronavirus.

Over the course of the year these visits covered the following key areas:
Purchases and cash payments
Payroll

Income and cash receipts

Fixed assets

Financial budgeting and monitoring
Regularity

Govemance

Risk management

Use of accounting software
Covid-19 impact

There were no fundamental findings that needed the attention of management. One important, but not
fundamental, finding was to remove a Governor from Companies House and five minor ervors were raised
with Govemors and remedial actions approved.

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

As Accounting Officer the Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year In question the review has been informed by the audits carried out, the school
staffs experisnce of these audits, and thelr findings. The Accounting Officer has been advised of the
implications of the result of reviews of the system of internal control by the Finance and Bulldings Committee
and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system Is In place.
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This was approved by order of the Trustees of the Board of Trustees on | . and signed on its behalf
by: 14/12/202/

A Howarth M Hanbury

Trustee Accounting Officer
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STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of Hayes Schoo! | have considered my responsibliity to notify the Academy Board of
Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material Imegularity, Impropriety and non-
compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Academy, under the funding agreement in
place between the Academy and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had
due regard to the requirements of the Academles Financial Handbook 2020.

| confirm that | and the Academy Board of Trustees are able to identify any material imegular or improper use of
all funds by the Academy, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
Academy’s funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

1 confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA.

MO

M Hanbury
Accounting Officer

Date: 14/12/202/
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HAYES SCHOOL
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The Trustees (who do not receive remuneration for their role as Trustees) (who are also the directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for praparing the Trustees' report and the
financlal statements in accordance with the Academles Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees (who do not receive remuneration for their role as Trustees) to prepare
financial statements for each financial . Under company law, the Trustees (who do not receive remuneration for
thelr role as Trusteas) must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and appfication of
resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the
Trustees (who do not receive remuneration for their role as Trustees) are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. observe the methods and principles of the Charittes SORP 2019 and the Acadeniles Aeoounts Direction
2020 to 2021;

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

o state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financlal statements; ’

) prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it Is Inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees (who do not recelve remuneration for their role as Trustees) are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficlent to show and explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees (who do not receive remuneration for thelr role as Trustees) are responsible for ensuring that in its
conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and other controls, which conform with the
requirements both of propriety and of good financlal management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants
received from ESFA/DIE have been applled for the purposes intended.

The Trustees (who do not recelve remuneration for their role as Trustees) are responsible for the maintenance
and integrity of the corporate and financlal information included on the charitable company’s website. Legislation
in the United Kingdom goveming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legisiation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:
A Howarth

Chalr of Trustees
Date: /4/12 [ 2t
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HAYES SCHOOL
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF HAYES
SCHOOL

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Hayes Schcol (the ‘academy’) for the year ended 31 August 2021
which comprise the Statement of financial activities (Incorporating income and expenditure account), the Batance
sheet, the Statement of cash flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policles.
The financlal reporting framework that has been applied In their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), Including FRS 102 ‘The
Financlal Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2018 and the
Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA).

In our opinlon the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy’s affairs as at 31 August 2021 and of its Incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academles Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the ESFA.

Basis for oplnion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibliities for the audit
of the financial statements section of cur report. We are independent of the Academy in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including
the Financlal Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficlent and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions refating to going concarn

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concem basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements Is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any matarial uncertainties ralating to events or
conditions that, individuaily or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy's ability to continue as a
going concemn for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concem are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report other than the financial statements
and our Auditors’ report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the
Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the -
extent otherwise explicitly stated In our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other Information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Opinion on other matters prescribad by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the Information given in the Trustees' report for the financlal year for which the financial statements are
prepared Is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Trustess' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy and Its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companles Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, In our opinion:

° adequate accounting records have not been kept, or relums adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or .

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retumns; o

. certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not recelved all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibllities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Trustees’ responsibilities statement, the Trustees {(who are also the directors of the
Academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy’s ability to
continue as a golng concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going
concemn basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy or to cease operations,
or have no realistic altemative but to do so.
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Auditors’ responsiblilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an Auditors' report that Includes our
" opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decislons of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

iregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in r9§pec§ of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting imegularities, including fraud is
detailed below.

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement In respect of Irregularities, including fraud and non-
compllance with laws and regulations, we considered the following:

o the nature of the Academy sector, control environment and the Academy's performance;

e results of our enquiries of management and the Trustee board, including the committees charged with
govemance over the Academy’s finance and control, about their own identification and assessment of the
risks of iregularities;

« any matters we identified having obtained and reviewed the Academy’s documentation of their policies and
procedures relating to: identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they
were aware of any instances of non-compliance; detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether
they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud; the internal controls established to mitigate
risks of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations.

¢ how the Academy ensured it met its obligations arising from it being financed by the ESFA and other
funders, and as such material compliance with these obligations Is required to ensure the Academy will
continue to receive its public funding and be authorised to operate, including around ensuring there is no
material unauthorised use of funds and expenditure;

o how the Academy ensured it met its obligations to its principal regulator, the Secretary of State for
Education; and

e the matters discussed among the audit engagement team and involving relevant Intemal Academy
specialists regarding how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements and any potential
indicators of fraud.

As a result of these procedures, we considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the
organisation for fraud, which included incomect recognition of revenue, management overide of controls using
manual jounal entries, procurement and payroll. We identified the greatest potential for fraud as Incorrect
recognition of revenue and management override using manual journal entries.

in common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to
the risk of management override. We also obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks
that the Academy operates in, focusing on provisions of those laws and regulations that had a direct effect on the
determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The key laws and regulations we
considered In this context included the Academles Accounts Direction, Academies Financlal Handbook, UK
Companies Act, tax legislation, the Charities SORP 2019 and FRS102.

In addition, we considered provisions of cther laws and regutations that do not have a direct effect on the
financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the Academy’s abllity to operate or to
avold a material penalty. These Included safeguarding regulations, data protection regulations, occupational
heaiét and safety regulations, education and Inspections legislation, bullding legislation and employment
legisiation.

Our procedures to respond to risks identified included the following:
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¢ reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance

with provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial
statements;

e reviewing the financlal statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess the
recognition of revenue;

¢ enquiring of Trustees and management and those charged with govemance conceming actual and potential
litigation and claims;

performing procedures to confirm material compliance with the requirements of its regulators;
performing analytical procedures to Identify any unusual or unexpected relatlonships that may indlcate risks
of material misstatement due to fraud;

+ reading minutes of meetings of those charged with govemance and reviewing intemal control reports; and

¢ In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness of
Joumal entries and other adjustments; and assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting
estimates are Indicative of a potential bias.

Wae also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team
members, and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations throughout
the audit.

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial statements,
recognising that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resuiting from an error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery,
misrepresentations or through collusion. There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures psrformed and the
further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the
financlal statements, the less likely we would become aware of it.

A further description of our responsibiiities for the audit of the financial statements Is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditors’ report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companles Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibllity to anyone other than the Academy and its
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Mark Munro FCA (Senlor statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of -

Bishop Fleming LLP

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditors

2nd Floor Stratus House

Emperor Way

Exeter Business Park

Exeter

EX13QS

Date: /¢, // L/z./
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO HAYES
SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 9 November 2020 and further to the requirements
of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as Included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to
2021, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and Income received by Hayes School during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have bsen applied
to the purposes identified by Parllament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern
them.

This report is made solely to Hayes School and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter.
Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Hayes School and ESFA those matters we are required
to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibliity to anyone other than Hayes School and ESFA, for ocur work, for this report, or for the conclusion we
have formed.

Respective responsibllities of Hayes School's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Hayes School's funding agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education dated 31 March 2011 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1
September 2020, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applled for the purposes
Intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
incoms recelved during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have not been applied to purposes
Intended by Parfiament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govem them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts Issued by ESFA, We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined In our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement Is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficlent appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement Is more limited in scopse than a reascnable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtaln assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be Identifled in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy’s income and expenditure.
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Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govemn them.

Beakop- F/d.hw?« LLP
Mark Munro FCA (Reporting Accountant)
Bishop Fleming LLP
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors
2nd Floor Stratus House
Emperor Way
Exeter Business Park
Exeter
EX1 3QS

Date: /¢, //L/Z/
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

income from:

Donations and capital
grants

Other trading activities
Charitable activities

Total Income

Expenditure on:
Ralsing funds
Charitable activities

Total expenditure

Net income /
{expenditure)

Transfers between
funds

Net movement in
funds before other
recognised
gains/(losses)

Other recognised
{losses):

Actuarial losses on
defined benefit
pension schemes

Net movement in
funds

Reconclllation of
funds:

Total funds brought
forward

"~ Net movement in funds

Total funds carrled
forward

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds

2021 2021 2021 2021 2020

Note £ £ £ £ £
- 3,084 32,804 35,888 49,654

6 24,530 - - 24,530 27,695
4 112,460 2,116,804 - 2,229,264 2,105,963
136,990 2,119,888 32,804 2,289,682 2,183,312

- 12,051 - 12,051 7,618

7 133,640 2,231,526 148,025 2,513,191 2,425,718
133,640 2,243,577 148,025 2,525,242 2,433,336
3,350 (123,689) (115,221) (235,560) (250,024)

16 - (21,790) 21,790 - -

3,350 {145,479) (93,431) (235,5690) (250,024)
22 . (174,000) - (174,000) (41,000)
3,350 {319,479) (93,431) (409,560) (291,024)
—————————— a——————————— - ]
326,753 (1,568,194) 5,405,808 4,164,367 4,455,391
3,350 {319,479) (83,431) {409,560) (201,024)

330,103 (1,887,673) 5,312,377 3,754,807 4,164,367

The Statement of financial activities Includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 30 to §7 form part of these financial statements,
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HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

REGISTERED NUMBER:07548734
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2021
2021 2020
Note £ £
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13 5,342,702 5,431,113
5,342,702 5,431,113
Current assets
Debtors 14 55,320 45,274
Cash at bank and in hand 551,778 487,625
607,098 532,899
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year 15 (130,993) (110,645)
Net current assets 476,105 422,254
Total assets less current llabilities 5,818,807 5,853,367
Not assets excluding pension liabllity 5,818,807 5,853,367
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 22 (2,064,000) (1,689,000)
Total net assets 3,754,807 4,164,367
— ————] f———— |
Funds of the Academy
Restricted funds:
Fixed asset funds 16 5,312,317 5,405,808
Restricted income funds 16 176,327 120,806
Restricted funds excluding pension asset 16 5,488,704 5,526,614
Pension reserve 16 (2,064,000) (1,689,000)
Total restricted funds 16 3,424,704 3,837,614
Unrestricted Income funds 16 330,103 326,753
Total funds 3,754,807 4,164,367

The financlal statements on pages 27 to 57 were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustess and are

signed on thelr behalf, by:

9
A Howarth :
Chair of Trustees / )

Date: /412 202/

The notes on pages 30 to 57 form part of these financial statements.
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HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Change In cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 30 to 57 form part of these financial statements
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19

20, 21

2021 2020
£ £
14,774 10,621
(50,620) (851)
64,154 8,770
487,625 477,855
551,779 487,625
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HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

Accounting policles

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except whare noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of the Academy, which Is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Appilicable In the UK and Republic of Iretand (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charitles preparing thelr accounts in accordance
with the Financlal Reporting Standard applicable In the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)
{Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academles Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA, the

Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

12

Hayes School meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.
GOING CONCERN

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concem is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the abllity of
the Academy to continue as a going concem. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the Academy has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy’s abllity to continue
as a going concem, thus they continue to adopt the going concem basis of accounting In preparing
the financial statements.
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HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

Accounting polficies (continued)

13

INCOME

All incoming resources are recegnised when the Academy has entittement to the funds, the receiptis
probable and the amount can be measured rellably.

Grants

Grants are Included In the Statement of financial activities on a recelvable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the peried Is shown In the relevant
funds on the Balance sheet. Where Income Is recelved In advance of meeting any performance-
relatad conditions there Is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition Is deferred
and Included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entittement occurs before income is received, the income Is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which
it is recelvable and any abatement in respect of the year Is deducted from income and recognised as
a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitiement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected In the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entittement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the Academy which amounts to a donation is recognised In the
Statement of financial activities In the year in which it is raceivable (where there are no performance-
related conditions) where recelpt is probable and it can be measured rellably.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income

Other income, Including the hire of facilitles, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the Academy has provided the goods or services.

EXPENDITURE

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settiement and
the amount of the obiigation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved In undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated diractly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of ime spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the assel’s use.

Expenditure on ralsing funds

This Includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy to ralse funds for its charitable purposes and
Includes costs of ail fundraising actlvities events and non-charitable trading.

Page 31



HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

Accounting policles (continued)

14

1.5

1.6

1.7

EXPENDITURE (CONTINUED)

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy’s educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the govemance of the Academy apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of imecoverable VAT.
TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Assets costing £500 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are camied at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the ald of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are Included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions aftached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset
fund in the Statement of financlal activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on
the relevant assets s charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial
activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on
such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its
expacted useful life, as follows:

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Freehold property - 50 Years
Plant and machinery - 25% SL
Computer equipment -33%SL
Motor vehicles - 20% SL

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreclation on these assets is not charged
until they are brought Into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the camrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of financial activities.

DEBTORS

Trade and other debtors with no stated Interest rate and due within one year are recorded at the
amount of the cash or other consideration expected to be recelved. Prepayments are valued at the
amount pald.

CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND

Cash at bank and In hand includes cash and short-term highly liquld Investments with a short maturity

of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account and
cash on deposit that has a notice period of less than 30 days.
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HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

18

1.9

LIABILITIES

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settiement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy
anticipates it will pay to settie the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Academy only holds baslc financlal instruments as defined In FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the Academy and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial asssts - trade and other debtors are basic financial Instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 14. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank Is classified as a basic financlal instrument and Is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financlal instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detalled in note 15. Taxation and social security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial
fability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation.to defiver services
rather than cash or another financial instrument.

1.10 TAXATION

The Academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore It meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of Income or capital gains
recelved within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are
applied exclusively to charitable purposes. .
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HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

Accounting policles (continued)

1.11 PENSIONS

Retirement benefits to employess of the Academy are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS®) and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Academy in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially leve! percentage of cument and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
dstermined by the Govemnment Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS Is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the pericd to which they relate.

The LGPS Is a funded muiti-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at falr value
and liabilittes are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of retum on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, seftlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit llability/asset Is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest Income on the scheme assets, calculated
by muitiplying the falr value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest iIncome on the scheme assets
and the actual retum on the scheme assets is recognised In other recognised galns and losses.

Actuarial galns and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

1.12 FUND ACCOUNTING

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the-
charitable objects of the Academy at the discretion of the Trustees.

Designated funds comprise unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the Trustees for particular
purposes. The alm and use of each designated fund is set out In the notes to the financlal
statements.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
Imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created Is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Transfers are made between restricted funds and restricted fixed assets funds where restricted funds -
are used to purchase fixed assets.

1.13 OPERATING LEASES

Rentals pald under operating leases are charged to the Statement of financial activities on a stralght
line basis over the lease term.
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HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

2.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND AREAS OF JUDGEMENT

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, Including expectations of future events that are belleved to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the camying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Govemmment Penslon Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a varlety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 22, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liabllity. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liabllity at 31
August 2021. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carmrying amount of the pensian liability.

Critical areas of judgement:

The Academy Trust obtains use of fixed assels as a lessee. The classlfication of such leased as operating
or finance lease requires the Academy Trust to determine, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the amangements, whether it retains or acquires the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of these assets and accordingly whether the lease requires an asset and liability to be
recognised in the Batance Sheet.

3. income from donations and capital grants

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
£ £ £ £ £
Donatlons - 3,084 22,464 25,548 40,870
Capital Grants - - 10,340 10,340 8,784
TOTAL 2021 - 3,084 32,804 35,888 49,654
—_—— P e —— ]

TOTAL 2020 ‘ 38,347 " 2523 8784 49654

—————— B I ———
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HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

4, income from charitable activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

2021 2021 2021 2020

£ £ £ £

Education 112,460 2,116,804 2,229,264 2,105,963

[——— B —————— B |
TOTAL 2020 122,791 1,983,172 2,105,963
———— e ===

Following clarification in the Academy Accounts Direction, nursery activiies which were previously
separately identified as their own charitable activity have now been included with the Educational

aclivities reported throughout the accounts.
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HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

5. Funding for the Academy’s Educational Operations

Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2020
£ £ £ £
DFE/ESFA GRANTS
OTHER DFE/ESFA GRANTS
General Annual Grant - 1,634,860 1,634,860 1,600,608
Other DE/EFSA grants - 25,233 25,233 21,788
UIFSM - 41,006 41,006 46,816
Pupll Premium - 201,728 201,728 184,316
Teacher's Pay and Pension - 78,787 78,787 79,581
- 1,981,614 1,981,614 1,933,109
OTHER GOVERNMENT GRANTS
High Needs - 54,699 54,699 38,678
Local Authority Pupll Premium - 12,057 12,057 8,756
Other Grants ‘ - 3,843 3,843 2,629
Nursery Income Funded 99,402 - 99,402 94,940
99,402 70,599 170,001 145,003
COVID-19 ADDITIONAL FUNDING
(DFE/ESFA)
Catch-up Premium ' - 33,151 33,151 -
- 33,151 33,151 -
Other
Lacal Autharity COVID Income - 31,440 31,440 -
Income from Catering 7.951 - 7.951 9,337
Other Income - - - 7,129
Nursery Income unfunded/ fee paying 5,107 - 5,107 11,385
13,058 31,440 44,498 27,851
112460 2,116,804 2,229,264 2,105,963
I——————————— I - 3

TOTAL 2020 ' 122,791 1,983,172 2,105,963

Following the rectassification in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020/21 of some grants received from
the Department of Education and ESFA, the academy’s funding for Universal Infant Free School Meals
and Pupil Premium is no longer reported under the Other DfE Group grants heading, but as separate lines
under the Other DfE/ESFA grants heading. The prior year numbers have been reclassified.
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HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

5. Funding for the Academy's Educational Operations (continued)

The Academy Trust has been eligible to claim additional funding In year from govemment support
schemes In response to the coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above under 'COVID
Additional Funding'.

The funding received for coronavirus exceptional support covers additional cleaning costs. These costs
are included In notes 7 and 9 below as appropriate.

6.  Other trading activities

Unrestricted Total Total

funds funds funds

2021 2021 2020

£ £ £

Fees received 20,162 20,162 26,570
Other . 4,368 4,368 1,125
TOTAL 2021 24,530 24,530 27,695

B —— ]

7. Expenditure

Staff Costs Premises Other Total Total
2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
£ £ £ £ £
Expenditure on raising funds:
Direct costs 12,051 - - 12,051 7,618
Academy’s educational
opserations:
Direct costs ' 1,659,688 1,347 183,868 1,844,901 1,768,153
Support costs 384,356 211,172 72,762 668,290 652,565
TOTAL 2021 2,056,093 212,519 256,630 . 2,525,242 2,428,336
_——— o/————=———
TOTAL 2020 2,013,573 184,418 230,345 2,428,336

i——— 1§
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HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

8.  Analysis of expenditure by activities

Education
TOTAL 2020

Analysis of support costs

Staff costs

Depreciation

Educational supplies

Staff development

Recruitment and support

Maintenance of premises and equipment
Cleaning

Rent and rates

Energy costs

Insurance

Security and transport

Catering

Technology costs

Office overheads

Legal and professional

Bank interest and charges

(Profit) / Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Govemance Costs '

TOTAL 2021

Activities
undertaken Support Total Total
directly costs funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2020
£ £ £ £
1,844,901 668,290 2,513,191 2,420,718
—— ]
1,768,153 652,565 2,420,718
| —————— I ————————
Total Total
funds funds
2021 2020
£ £
384,356 383,083
26,589 37,647
15,707 13,692
1,319 2,285
4,170 3,336
16,430 10,617
20,219 11,739
13,275 9,810
19,581 17,546
8,544 9,980
13,233 9,036
64,819 30,263
13,269 23,184
37,956 23,627
18,685 56,980
1,625 1,376
. 533
8,513 7,811
668,290 652,565
————————————————a——————}
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HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

9. Net expenditure

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Fees pald to auditors for:

- audit
- other services

10. Staff

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Soclal security costs
Penslon costs

Agency staff costs

b. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy during the year was as follows:

Teachers

Educational support
Administration and support
Management

2021 2020

£ £

2,542 2,849
149,372 147,075

- 2,083

6,750 5,255
2,230 1.560
2021 2020

£ £
1,453,181 1,441,558
109,432 114,393
492,531 450,180
2,055,144 2,006,141
949 7.432
2,056,083 2,013,573
| ——————————— A ——
2021 2020

No. No.

16 18

35 36

3 3

5 5

59 62
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HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

10.

"

Staff (continued)
b. Staff numbers (continued)

The average headcount expressed as full-time equivalents was:

2021 2020
No. No.
Teachers 16 17
Educational support 29 29
Administration and suppaort 2 3
Management 5 5
52 54
e
c. Higher pald staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and
employer’s national insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:

2021 2020
No. No.
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 1 1

e ——
d. Key management paréonnal

The key management personnel of the Academy comprise the Trustees (who do not recelve remuneration
for their role as Trustees) and the senior management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of
employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and employer national insurance
contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the Academy was £376,731
(2020: £358,536).

As staff Trustees are not remunerated in respect of thelr role as Trustee, where staff Trustees do not form
part of the Key Management Personnel other than in their role as Trustee, their remuneration as set out in
note 11 has not been included in the total benefits received by Key Management Personne! above.

Trustees’ remuneration and expenses

The Headteacher and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide
undertaking the roles of Headteacher and staff under their contracts of employment, and not in respect of
their services as Trustees. Other Trustees did not receive any payments, from the Academy in respect of
their roles as Trustees. The value of Trustees remuneration and cther benefits was as follows: M
Hanbury: Remuneration £75,000-£80,000 (2020: £75,000-£80,000), Employer's penslon contributions
£15,000- £20,000 (2020: £15,000- £20,000), E Bamber: Remuneration £55,000- £60,000 (2020: £55,000
- £60,000) Employer's pension contributions £10,000- £15,000 (2020:£10,000- £15,000).

During the year ended 31 August 2021, expenses totalling £0 were reimbursed or pald directly to Trustee
(2020 - £31 to 1 Trustes). The reimbursed expenses relate to travel.
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HAYES SCHOOL )
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

12. Trusgoes' and Officers’ insurance

The Academy has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection amangement (RPA), an
altemative to insurance where UK govemment funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, emors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and
officers indemnity element from the overali cost of the RPA scheme membership.

13. Tanglble fixed assets
Furniture
Freehold and Computer Motor
property equipment equipment vehicles Total
£ £ R £ . £
COST OR VALUATION
At 1 September 2020 6,636,946 191,051 89,473 4,000 6,921,470
Additions . 28,982 31,979 - 60,861
_ At 31 August 2021 6,636,946 220,033 121,452 4,000 6,982,431
DEPRECIATION
At 1 September 2020 1,226,041 177,309 83,007 4,000 1,490,357
Charge for the year 132,739 - 8,127 8,506 - 149,372
At 31 August 2021 1,358,780 185,436 91,513 4,000 1,639,729
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 August 2021 5,278,166 34,597 29,939 . 5,342,702
———————— - ——————— — ——————————a————————
At 31 August 2020 5,410,805 13,742 6,466 - 5,431,113
| ———— ——— I 3 — ——
14, Debtors
2021 2020
£ £
DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
Prepayments and accrued Income 47,260 41,015
VAT recoverable 8,060 4,259
55,320 45,274
j—
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

15. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2021 2020
£ £
Trade creditors 29,908 13,337
Other taxation and soclal security 28,119 29,805
Other creditors 33,454 33,268
Accruals and deferred income 39,512 34,135
130,993 110,645
——————ay  —————————§
2021 2020
£ £
Deferred income at 1 September 2020 23,723 35,233
Resources deferred during the year 22,248 23,723
Amounts released from previous periods (23,723) (35,233)
Deferred Income at 31 August 2021 . 22,248 23,723

At the balance sheet date the Academy was holding funds received in advance for Universal Infant Free
School Meals and Rates Rellef for the 2021/22 financlal year.

Page 43
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(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

16. Statement of funds

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Galns/ 31 August
2020 income Expenditure infout {(Lossas) 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
UNRESTRICTED
FUNDS
Designated Funds
Schoo! Improvement 46,400 - . {6,300) - 40,100
General Funds
Free reserves 144,197 37,588 (32,891) 41,167 - 190,061
Nursery 38,184 99,402 (99,402) - . 38,184
Purchase of fixed
assets 59,625 - (1,347) 3,480 - 61,758
Voluntary Unrestricted 38,347 - - (38,347) - -
280,353 136,990 (133,640) 6,300 - ‘ 290,003
TOTAL
UNRESTRICTED
FUNDS 326,753 136,980 (133,640) - - 330,103
Restricted general
funds
General Annual Grant
(GAG) 120,806 1,634,860 (1,583,996) {20,000) . 151,670
High needs - 54,699 (54,699) - - .
Pupil premiun - 201,728 (201,728) - - -
UIFSM - 41,006 (41,006) - ’ - -
Other restricted
income - 3,843 (3,843) - . -
Donations - 3,084 (3,084) - - -
PE grant - 19,550 (12,120) - - 7,430
Rates - 5,683 (5,683) - - .
Pay and Penslon o - 78,787 (78,787) - - -
Individual PP Income . 12,057 (9,848) - - 2,409
Catch Up Premium - 31,440 (14,832) (1,790) - 14,818
Covid FSM Income - 33,151 {33,151) - - -
Penslon reserve {1,689,000) - {201,000) - (174,000) (2,064,000)

(1,568,184) 2,119,888  (2,243,577) (21,790) (174,000) (1,887,673)
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16. Statement of funds (continued)
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Balance at 1 Balance at
September ' Transfers Galns/ 31 August
2020 income Expenditure Infout (Losses) 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Fixed assets
transferred on
conversion 5,084,776 - (125,294) - - 4,959,482
Fixed assets
purchased from
GAG and other
restricted funds 183,184 - (4,544) 1,790 . 180,430
DfE/ ESFA Capital
grants . . . 105,609 10,340 {12,174) 22,886 - 126,661
Donated Fixed Assets » - 22,464 (6,013) - - 16,451
Unspent Capital 32,239 - - (22,886) - 9,353
Ringfencad (T Spend . -~ - o
- from GAG - - - -20,000 . 20,000 -
5,405,808 32,804  (148,025) 21,780 . 5,312,377
TOTAL RESTRICTED
FUNDS 3,837,614 2,152,692 (2,391,602) - {174,000) 3,424,704
TOTAL FUNDS 4,164,367 2,289,682 (2,525,242) . (174,000) 3,754,807
—— e ——  —— 3 ————
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(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

16.

Statement of funds (continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

DESIGNATED FUNDS
As stated in the Trustees' Report, the Academy has designated £46,400 towards potential works and
school improvements that need attention over the next 5 years.

UNRESTRICTED FUNDS
The Purchase of Fixed Assets fund represents the net book value of fixed assets purchased using
unrestricted funds.

Voluntary unrestricted funds have been raised from previous Goveming Body events. The funds are to be
used towards meeting the academy’s Charitable aims and objectives and as such the carried forward
balance has been shown under general unrestricted free reserves.

RESTRICTED FUNDS
General Annual Grant - Income from the ESFA which is to be used for the normal running costs of the
Academy, including education and support costs.

High Needs - Funding received by the Local Authority to fund further support for students with additional

Pupil Premium - Pupil premium represents funding received from the ESFA for children that qualify for
free school meals to enable the Academy to address the current undertying inequalities between those
children and their wealthler peers.

Nursery funding - This Is funding towards nursery costs.

UIFSM - This funding was recelved in order to ensure children that meet the criterla have access to free
school meals.

PE Grant - This represents funding received from the ESFA and must be used to fund improvements to
the provision of PE and sport, for the benefit of primary-aged pupils, so that they develop heatlthy lifestyles.

Pay and Pension Grant - This funding is provided to support the increasing costs of teachers’ pay awards
and employer contributions to the teachers’ pension scheme.

Other restricted funds - This relates to smaller restricted income streams.

Pension reserve - This represents the Academy’s share of the assets and liabllities in the Local
Government Pensian Scheme. As with most pension schemes this Is currently in deficit due to an excess
of scheme llabllities over scheme assets which was Inherited on converslon to an Academy.

RESTRICTED FIXED ASSET FUNDS

Fixed assets transferred on conversion - This reprasent the buildings and equipment donated to the
School from the Local Authority on conversion to an Academy.

Fixed assets purchased from GAG and unrestricted funds - This fund includes transfers from the GAG
restricted fund for capital related expenditure.

DfE/ESFA Capital Grants - These funds are recelved for direct expenditure on fixed asset projects. The
fixed asset fund balance at the year end represents the NBV of assets and any unspent grant amount.

Unspent capital - This represents the unspent DFC income carried forward to future pericds which has
been split out of DfE/ESFA Capital Grants.
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16. Statement of funds (continued)
Ringfenced IT spend from GAG - This represents unspent GAG funds that have been ringfenced for
capital projects over the next year.

OTHER INFORMATION
Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2021.
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16. | Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respact of the preceding year is as follows:

UNRESTRICTED
FUNDS

Designated Funds

School
Improvement

General Funds

Free reserves

Nursery

Purchase of fixed
assets

Voluntary
Unrestricted

TOTAL
UNRESTRICTED
FUNDS

Restricted General

Funds
General Annual
Grant (GAG)

High needs
Puplil premlun
UIFSM

Other restricted
income

Donations
. PE grant
Rates
Pay and Penslon
Penslon reserve

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2019 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2020
£ £ £ £ £ £
37,500 - - 8.900 - 46,400
152,485 44,161 (43,549) (8,800) - 144,197
20,738 108,325 (88,879) - - 38,184
60,971 - (1,346) - - 59,625
- 38,347 - - - 38,347
234,194 188,833 (133,774) (8,900) - 280,353
271,694 188,833 (133,774) - - 326,753
105,289 1,600,608 (1,580,746) (4,345) - 120,806
- 38,678 (38,678) - - -
- 193,072 (193,072) - - -
- 46,816 (46,816) - - -
- 2,629 (2,629) - - -
- 2,523 (2,523) - - -
- 19,420 . (19,420) - - -
- 2,368 (2,368) - - -
- 79,581 (79,581) - - -
(1,460,000) - (188,000) - (41,000) (1,689,000)
(1,354,711) 1,985,695  (2,153,833) (4,345) (41,000) (1,568,194)
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16. Statement of funds (continued)

Restricted fixed
asset funds

Fixed assets
transferred on
conversion

Fixed assets
purchased from
GAG and other
restricted funds

DfE/ ESFA Capital
grants

Unspent Capiltal

TOTAL
RESTRICTED
FUNDS

TOTAL FUNDS

5,210,067 - (125,291) - . 5,084,776
190,256 - (11,417) 4,345 - 183,184
107,258 7,372 (9,021) - - 105,609

30,827 1412 - - . 32,239
5,538,408 8,784 (145,729) 4,345 . 5,405,808
4,183,697 1,994,479  (2,299,562) - (41,000) 3,837,614

- (41,000) 4,164,367

4,455,391

2,183,312
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17.

Analysls of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2021
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets 61,758 - 5,280,944 5,342,702
Current assets 268,345 307,320 31,433 607,098
Creditors due within one year - (130,993) - (130,993)
Penslon liability - (2,064,000) - (2,064,000)
TOTAL 330,103  (1,887,673) 5,312,377 3,754,807
———— e ——
Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year
' : Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020 2020
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets 64,916 - 5,366,197 5431,113
Current assets 261,837 231,451 39,611 532,899
Creditors due within one year - (110,645) - (110,645)
Pension liability - (1,689,000) - (1,689,000)
TOTAL 326,753 (1,568,194) 5,405,808 4,164,367
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18.

19.

20.

Reconcillation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities

Net expenditure for the year (as per Statement of financial activities)

ADJUSTMENTS FOR:

Depreciation

Capital grants from DfE and other capital Income

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost

(Increase) in debtors

Increase/(decrease) in creditors

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DfE Group

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
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2021 2020
£ £

(235,560)  (250,024)

149,372 147,075
{10,340) (8.784)
174,000 160,000
27,000 28,000
(10,046) (342)
20,348 (65,304)

114,774 10,621

e e ————t

2021 2020

£ £

{60,960) (11,718)

- 2,083

10,340 8,784

(50,620) (851)
—_—=

2021 2020

£ £

551,779 487,625

551,779 487,625
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21. Analysls of changes in net debt

At1
September At 31
2020 Cash flows August 2021
£ £ £
Cash at bank and in hand 487,625 64,153 551,778
487,625 64,153 551,778

22. Penslon commltménts

The Academy’s employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Govemment Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Devon County Council. Both are multi-employer
defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the pericd ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2019.

There were no outstanding or prepald contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membarship Is automatic for full-time teachers in
academles. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enroiment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a

percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are pald by public funds provided by Parllament.
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22,

Pension commitments (continued)
Vatuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Penslons (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actvarial valuation of the TPS was carmried out as at
31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education an § March 2018.
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

) employer confribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy)

. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets {estimated future contributions
together with the noticnal investments held at the valuation date) of £198,100 miliion, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% In excess of prices
and 2% in excess of eamings. The rate of real eamings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including eamings growth Is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.
The employer's pension costs pald to TPS in the year amounted to £200,029 (2020 - £189,263).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions wabsite
(hitps/iwww .teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set ocut in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded muiti-employer pension scheme. The
Academy has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.
The Academy has set out above the information avallable on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2021 was £152,000 (2020 -
£137,000), of which employer’s contributions totalled £119,000 (2020 - £105,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £ 33,000 (2020 - £32,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 17.6
per cent for employers and 5.5 - 12.5 per cent for employees.

As described in note the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the Academy, who were the
employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who
were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employses who
transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the
Academy at the balance sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the

event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

' Page 53



HAYES SCHOOL
(A COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

22. Pension commitments (continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions

Rate of increase in salaries

Rate of Increase for pensions in paymentfinflation

Discount rate for scheme liabllities
Inflation assumption (CP1)

2021 2020
% %
3.9 3.25
29 2.25
165 1.60
29 225

The current mortality assumptions inciude sufficlent allowance for future improvements In mortality rates.

The assumed life expactations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today
Males

Females

Retiring in 20 years
Males

Females

Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease
CPl rate +0.1%

CPl rate -0.1%

Pége 54

2021 2020

Years Years

227 229

24 241

24 24.3
254 255

e —

2021 2020
£000 £000
(98) (78)
100 80
144 106
(139) (102)
94 75
(92) (73)
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22,

Pension commitments (continued)
Share of scheme assets

The Academy’s share of the assets in the scheme was:

3,721,000
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2021 2020
£ £
Equities 1,037,000 766,000
Gilits 213,000 45,000
Corporate bonds 31,000 60,000
Property and infrastructure 212,000 154,000
Cash . 10,000 15,000
Altemative assets - 82,000
Target return portfolio 154,000 162,000
' TOTAL MARKET VALUE OF ASSETS " "1,657,000 1,284,000
The actual retum on scheme assets was £269,000 (2020 - £6,000).
The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows:
2021 2020
£ £
Current service cost (293,000) (265,000)
Interest income 20,000 22,000
interest cost S o (47,000)  (50,000)
TOTAL AMOUNT RECOGNISED IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
ACTIVITIES (320,000) (293,000)
—_—— ———— ]
Changes In the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:
2021 2020
£ £
At 1 September 2,973,000 2,574,000
Current service cost 293,000 265,000
interest cost 47,000 50,000
Employee contributions 33,000 32,000
Actuarial losses/(gains) 422,000 (49,000)
Benefits pald ' " (47,000) 101,000
AT 31 AUGUST

2,973,000
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22,

25,

Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the fair value of the Academy’s share of scheme assets were as follows:

2021 2020
£ £
At 1 September 1,284,000 1,114,000
Interest income 21,000 23,000
Actuarial gains/(losses) 248,000 (90,000)
Employer contributions 119,000 105,000
Employee contributions 33,000 32,000
Beanefits paid (47,000) 101,000
Administration expanses (1,000) {(1,000)

AT 31 AUGUST 1,657,000 1,284,000
. N . P = — .
Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2021 the Academy had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

2021 2020

_ £ £

Not later than 1 year 2,542 2,849
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 2,018 4,298
4,560 7,147

Memboers' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.

General Information

Hayes School is a company limited by guarantee, incorporated in England and Wales. The registered

" office is Hayes Road, Paignton, Devon, TQ4 5PJ.
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26.

Related party transactlons

Owing to the nature of the Academy and the composition of the Board of Trustees belng drawn from local
public and private secter organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook, inctuding notifying the ESFA of all transactions
made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining thelr approval where required, and with the Academy’s
financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party
transactions.

No related party transactions took place in the period of account other than certain Trustees’
remuneration and expenses already disclosed in note 11.
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